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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Dr. Morepen Limited
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Dr. Morepen Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of standalone financial statements™ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in Annual Report, but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the company in accordance with applicable Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the company or to cease the operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedure responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
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company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™), issued by
the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.
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€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%
March,2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are

disqualified as on 31% March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The company has not paid any remuneration to any director during the year under audit

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii) During the year, the company was not liable to transfer any amount to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

iv) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e) contain any material mis-statement. (Refer Note No. 33(b) to the standalone
financial statements).

v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

F‘\or S.P.Babuta & Associates
Ci\h ered Accountants

(Partner)
Date :16'™ May, 2023 Membership No. : 086348

Place :Gurugram,Haryana UDIN : 2308624&8 BGYBRCGRE 72
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Dr. Morepen
Limited for the year ended 31% March,2023)

@) (@) |(A) | The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) | The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification;

(c) The company does not have any immovable property as at 31% March 2023;
(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year;

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings

have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder;

(ii) (a) As explained to us , physical verification of inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no
discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory was
noticed;

(b) During the year the company has not been sanctioned any working capital
limits from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets, hence provisions of this clause are not applicable to the company;
(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed, we are of the opinion that during the year the
company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
However old interest free unsecured loan to subsidiary company Total Care
Limited amounting to Rs. 868.00 Lakhs is outstanding as on 31 March 2023.
There are no fixed term for repayment (Refer note no. 5 to the financial
statements) ;

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed, we are of the opinion that in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act;

v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not accepted any deposits and does not have any unclaimed deposits as on
31 March 2023 and hence provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable to the company;

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
for the company under section 148(1) of the Act;
(vii) | (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis

of examination of the records of the company, during the year, the company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. No such dues are
outstanding as on 31st March 2023 for a period exceeding six months;

(b) According to the records and information and explanation given to us, there
are no dues in respect of Income tax, Sales tax, VAT, Service-tax, Custom
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duty, cess outstanding as at March 31, 2023 due to any dispute;

(viii) According to the records and information and explanation given to us, no
transaction/amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the company does not have outstanding loans or other
borrowings from Banks/FIs during the year under audit.;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender during the year;

(c) According to the records and information and explanation given to us, no
term loans were obtained during the year under audit;

(d) According to the records and information and explanation given to us, the
company has not raised any funds during the year under audit;

(e) According to the records and information and explanation given to us, the

company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

® According to the records and information and explanation given to us, the
company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

x) (a) During the year, the company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments);
(b) During the year, the company has received an aggregate sum of Rs.625

Lakhs from two entities namely Blueheaven Marketing Private Limited and
Vignet Trading Private Limited towards subscription and issue of
1,01,69,875 nos of warrants at an issue price of Rs.30/-(Rupees Thirty Only)
per warrants, entitling equivalent number of equity shares. Provided that,
pursuant to exercise of option, on payment of the balance amount of warrants
issue price (i.e. an aggregate sum of Rs.1990.96 Lakh) within prescribed
period, the said warrants will be converted into Equity Shares of the
Company.(Refer footnote to the statement of Change in Equity)

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or
on the company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management;

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) According to the records and information and explanation given to us, there
is no whistle-blower complaint received during the year by the company;
(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence this clause is not applicable
to the company;
(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the company, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 & 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) As explained to us by the management, there is no Internal Audit system in
the company as the same is not required.
(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered into
any non- cash transaction with directors or person connected with them
during the year;
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(xvi) | (a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities during the year;

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India;

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year;

(xviii) There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year but have
retired by rotation on completion of his term.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all the liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to
spend any amount under CSR Activities;

(xxi) There is no qualification or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies
included in the consolidated financial statements.

For S.P.Babuta & Associates.
hartered Accountants

Date :16" May, 2023 Membership No. :086348 ‘
Place :Gurugram,Haryana UDIN : 220863L 8 BGYBEG3E72-
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements” of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Morepen
Laboratories for the year ended 31 March 2023)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dr. Morepen
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial control. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
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preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For S.P.Babuta & Associates
ered Accountants
) s\inegn. No:007657N

( értner)
Date :16™ May, 2023 Membership No. :086348
Place :Gurugram,Haryana UDIN: 2 20%£2L8BGYBEGS 872~



Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH , 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Notes 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets :
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 91.36 121.03
Intangible Assets 2 1,921.82 2,000.36
2,013.18 2,121.39
Financial Assets :
Investments 3 1171.00 1171.00
Other Financial Assets 4 131.21 135.43
Other Non-Current Assets o} 869.50 868.00
4184.89 4295.82
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 6 826.86 1760.06
Financial Assets :
Trade Receivables 7 2271.02 2584.33
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 11.00 2233
Other Current Assets 9 395.03 1052.10
3503.91 5418.82
TOTAL 7688.80 9714.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 10 4067.95 4067.95
Other Equity 446.13 466.25
4514.08 4534.20
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilties :
Other Financial Liabilities 11 120.00 148.26
Provisions 12 87.67 160.42
207.67 308.68
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilties :
Trade payables 13 2467.70 4067.38
Other Financial liabilities 14 188.20 298.82
Other Current Liabilties 15 178.46 242.83
Provisions 12 132.69 262.73
2967.05 4871.76
TOTAL 7,688.80 9,714.64
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-33
As per our separate report of even date For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

For 5:P.BABUTA & ASSOCIATES

Ch ar‘{er 2d Accountants

Firm‘{e gn. No. 007657N
|

(Ajay Kumar Sharm
Managing Director Director & CFO
Membership No. 086348 DIN No. : 01456254 DIN No. : 00041932

(Akspdy Mehta)
Company Secretary
Membership No. : A41168

Place : Gurugram
Date : 16th May,2023



Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH , 2023

( Rs. in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
Notes 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations (Net) 17 9530.00 10773.45
Other Income 18 190.92 6.92
Total Revenue 9720.92 10780.37
EXPENSES
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 19 5921.78 8040.59
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade 917.67 (1,177.56)
Employee Benefits Expenses 20 793.71 1379.15
Finance Cost - -
Depreciation & Amortization 2 992.47 644.77
Other Expenses 2] 1730.89 1850.00
Total Expenses 10356.52 10736.95
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (635.60) 43.42
Tax expense:
(1) Earlier Years 6.27 (12.10)
(2) Current - 53.57
Total Tax Expense 6.27 41.47
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (641.87) 1.95
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss :
Acturial Gain/(Loss) on Employee Benefits (3.25) (0.33)
(1) Tax on above - (0.08)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (3.25) (0.25)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (645.12) 1.70
Earning/(Loss) per share of par value of Rs.10/- 28
(1) Basic (1.58) 0.005
(2) Diluted (1.26) 0.004
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-33
As per our separate report of even date For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

For §.P.BABUTA & ASSOCIATES
Ch&' ered Accountants

(Ajay Kumar Sharma)
Director & CFO
DIN No. : 00041932

Membership No. 086348

/y(*cs\“'
‘Akshoy"Mehta)

Comipany Secretary
Membership No. : A41168

Place : Gurugram
Date : 16th May,2023



Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

( Rs. in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
Note No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit before Tax (635.60) 13.42
Adjustments for :
Depreciation & Amortisation ) 2 992.47 644.77
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 18 - (1.06)
Provision for Employee benefit (OCI) (3.25) (0.33)
Operating Profit before changes in Current Assets and Liabilities 353.62 686.80
Changes in current assets and current liabilities -
Trade Receivables 7 313.31 (238.72)
Other current assets 9 657.07 (950.81)
Inventories 6 933.20 (1188.49)
Current liabilities 12,13,14,15 (1904.71) 2612.88
Income Tax (Including Tax on OCI) (6.27) (41.39)
NET CASH GENERATED/(USED) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 346.22 880.27
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments 2 (7.44) (28.81)
Purchase/Addition of Intangibl 2 (876.82) (2,149.48)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments - 16.00
Loans & Other Non-current assels 45 2.72 1,248.49
NET CASH GENERATED/ (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (881.54) (913.80)
C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Money Received against Share Warrant 625.00 -
Change in Other Long Term liabilities & provisons(Net) 11,12 (101.01) (7.71)
NET CASH GENERATED/(USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 523.99 (7.71)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (4+B+C) (11.33) (41.24)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at Begining of the Year 22.33 63.57
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at End of the Year 11.00 22.33
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-33
As per our separate report of even date For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

For S.P.BABUTA & ASSOCIATES
Ch ar}gxred Accountants
Firm R gn. No. 007657N.
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(CA S butzt) (Ajay Kumar Sharma)
Pﬂf er Managing Director Director & CFO
Membership No. 086348 DIN No. : 01456254 DIN No. : 00041932

ompany Secretary
Membership No. : A411

Place : Gurugram
Date : 16th May,2023



Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at Ist April 2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Change in equity share capital
during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2023

4067.95

4067.95

As at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at Ist April 2021

Change in equity share capital

Balance as at March 31, 2022

during the year
4067.95 - 4067.95
OTHER EQUITY AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023
RESERVES & SURPLUS .
Ot:fert:em Money Received
Securities . . oen against share | Total Other Equity
3 Retained Earnings | comprehensive
Premium ¢ warrant
income
Balance as at Ist April 2022 3287.25 (3,264.30) 8.30 435.00 466.25
Profit for the year - (641.87) - - (641.87)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - (3.25) - (3.25)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year = (641.87) (3.25) S (645.12)
Money Received against Share warrant 625.00 625.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3287.25 (3906.17) 5.05 1060.00 446.13
OTHER EQUITY AS AT 31st MARCH, 2022
RESERVES & SURPLUS Other items
Money Received
Se iti of other against share Total Other Equit
courities Retained Earnings | comprehensive i3 gy

Premium income warrant
Balance as at Ist April 2021 3287.25 (3,266.25) 8.55 435.00 464.55
Profit for the year - 1:95 - - 195
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - (0.25) - (0.25)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - 1.95 (0.25) - 1.70
\Money Received against Share warrant - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3287.25 (3264.30) 8.30 435.00 466.25

In financial year 2020-21, the company had issued 1,01,69,875 Fully Convertible Warrants at an issue price of Rs. 30/- (Rupees Thirty Only) per Warrant to Blucheaven
Marketing Private Limited and Vignet Trading Private Limited (“Warrant Holders"). The said Warrant Holders were entitled to exercise their option to convert the
Warrants into equivalent number of Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each within a period of 12 months from the date of allotment of said Warrants
i.e., 24th March 2021. In the meantime, a request has been received from Warrant Holders to extend the Warrant Exercise period and accordingly, the company has
extended the Warrant exercise period up-to 9th March 2023 by passing of ‘Special Resolution’ on 10th March 2022. Therefore, the Warrant Holders were required to
exercise their option to convert Warrants into Equity Shares within the prescribed extended period upon payment of balance amount of Warrants issue price.

Further, during the financial year, the company has received partial balance amount from the Warrant Holders (Blueheaven Marketing Private Limited Rs.198.00 Lakhs
and Vignet Trading Private Limited Rs.427.00 Lakhs to subscribe for Equity Shares along with a request o extend Warrant Exercise Period for a further period of 1 year.
Based on the request received, the company has further extended the Warrant exercise period up-to 6th March 2024 by passing of ‘Special Resolution’ on 7th March 2023.
Accordingly, pursuant to exercise of option, i.e. upon payment of the balance amount of Warrants issue price (i.e. Rs.1990.96 Lakhs) on or before 6th March 2024, the said
Warrants will be converted into Equity Shares of the company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-33
ASs per our separate report of even date Fag & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

(Varun Suri) (Ajay Kumar Sharma)
Managing Director

DIN No. : 01456254

Director & CFO
DIN No. : 00041932

Company Secretary
Membership No. : A41168

Place : Gurugram

Date : 16th May,2023




1.

1.1

1.2

Dr. Morepen Limited

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Overview

Dr. Morepen Limited (“the Company”) is a Public limited company incorporated
and domiciled in India . The addresses of its registered office and principal place of
business are 409,Antriksh Bhawan, 22, KG Marg, New Delhi-110001 and 2 Floor,

Tower C, DLF Cyber Park, Udyog Vihar, Sector-20,Gurugram, Haryana-122016 .

The Company is in the business of trading of OTC, Health and diagnostic products.

Basis for preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act’’) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI), as applicable.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on May 16, 2023.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional
currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates.

Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless

otherwise indicated.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the company and normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company
has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of
its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Use of Estimates and Judgements
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management of the company to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These
estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of
‘revenues and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include
provisions for doubtful debts, employee benefits, provisions for income taxes, usefi
life of depreciable assets and provisions for impairments & others.




becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

1.3. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property,
plant and equipment as recognized in the financial statements as at the date of
transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as the deemed
cost as at the transition date pursuant to the exemption under Ind AS 101.

a) Free hold land is carried at cost. All other items of Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working
condition and location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs
and any expected significant costs of decommissioning, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred
after the PPE have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are
incurred.

b) Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets.

¢) Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their
intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental
expenses and attributable interest.

d) The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Assets to be disposed off are
reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

1.4 Intangible Assets and Amortisation
Intangible Assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. The
Company determines the amortisation period as the period over which the future
economic benefits will flow to the Company after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

1.5 Depreciation
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its
useful life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribe
in Schedule II to the Act or as per technical assessment.

a) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method at the
prescribed by the schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the manne
prescribed by it except assets costing less than Rs. 5000/- on which depreciati
is charged in full during the year.



b) Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful
life on straight line basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the
company for its use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is
based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, etc. The
amortization method and useful lives are reviewed periodically at end of each
financial year.

1.6. Valuation of inventories
Stocks of raw materials and other ingredients have been valued on First in First Out
(FIFO) basis, at cost or net realizable value whichever is less, finished goods and
stock-in-trade have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Goods in
transit are carried at cost.

1.7. Foreign Currency Transactions / Translations

i) Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate
at the date of the transaction.

ii) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

iii) Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences
on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those JSoreign currency
borrowings.

iv) Foreign exchange differences recorded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are
presented in the statement of profit and loss, as a part of finance cost. All other
Joreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and
loss on net basis.

v) In case of long term monetary items outstanding as at the end of year, exchange
differences arising on settlement / restatement thereof are capitalised as part of
the depreciable fixed assets to which the monetary item relates and depreciated
over the remaining useful life of such assets. If such monetary items do not
relate to acquisition of depreciable fixed assets, the exchange difference is
amortised over the maturity period / up to the date of settlement of such
monetary items, whichever is earlier, and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

1.8 Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the
shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date ,0f ePEy
declaration by the company’s Board of Directors. S s A
(Haryanay ) =)
Leases d'o(

Leases under which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards\s
ownership are classified as finance leases. When acquired, such assets are

capitalized at fair value or present value of minimum lease payments at the inception




2.0

of lease, whichever is lower. Lease under which the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership are not iransferred to lessee, is classified as operating lease. Lease
payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line
basis in net profit in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

i) Initial Recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, all the financial assets and liabilities are recognized at its
Jair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability except financial
asset or financial liability measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"). Transaction costs of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair
value through the Profit and Loss are immediately recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
are measured at transaction price.

ii) Subsequent measurement

a)

b)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is
measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The Company has adopted to measure investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 and carrying
amount as per previous GAAP at the date of transition has been considere
deemed cost in accordance with Ind AS 101.




iii)

e) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or
‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is
held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Gains or
Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Other Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash Sflows
Jrom the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability is
derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is determined using the valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Based on the three level fair value hierarchy, the methods used to determine the
Jair value of financial assets and liabilities include quoted market price,
discounted cash flow analysis and valuation certified by the external valuer.

In case of financial instruments where the carrying amount approximates fair
value due to the short maturity of those instruments, carrying amount is
considered as fair value.

2.1 Impairment of Assets

X~

i) Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company recognizes loss allowances using
the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized a
impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss.




2.2

2.3

ii) Non-Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case any
impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the
extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in
use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present
value based on an appropriate discount factor.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other
than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets, such reversal is not recognised.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount can be reliably measured.

a) Revenue is recognised at the value of consideration received or receivable. The
transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the
company as part of the contract. The amount disclosed as revenue is net of
returns, trade discounts, Goods and Services Tax (GST).

Provisions for rebates, discount and return are estimated and provided for in the
year of sales and recorded as reduction of revenue.

b) Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is
established.

Interest

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably.

Income from interest is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expecteg
credit losses.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expenséy
recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates
items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case
it is also recognized in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.
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2.6

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Pursuant to Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, the company has opted
to pay Income Tax as provided under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an
obligation.

\Uf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by

discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as g

reflect the current best estimate.
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A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities
are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in
settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in
the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the
realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent
asset and is recognised.

2.7 FEarning per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating the diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss
Jor the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted Jor the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted
as at beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

2.8 Employee Retirement benefits

i) Short term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Post— employment benefits

Defined contribution plans —

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme.
The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund. Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans —
Gratuity

The company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering eligible employees. The Gratuity payment plan provides Jor a lump sum
payment to the vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective
employee’s salary and tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of
five years of service.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuatio
performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using th
projected unit credit method. Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income which are not reclassified to
profit or loss in the subsequent periods.
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iii) Long — term employee benefits
Leave Encashment
The liability of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial

valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using
projected unit credit method.

Segment Reporting
The company operates in one reportable business segment i.e. “ OTC Health &

diagnostic products”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term deposits with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held Jor the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.
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Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st MARCH , 2023

3

a.

o

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
INVESTMENTS
Trade Investments
Investment in Equity instruments (Unquoted)
Subsidiary Company
Total Care Ltd
8,86,716 (Previous Year 8,86,716) Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each Sfully paid up 1171.00 1171.00
. Other Investments (At Cost) - -
1171.00 1171.00
Unquoted Investments -
Aggregate Amount 1171.00 1171.00
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits 131.21 135.43
131.21 135.43
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits with NSDL 1.50 -
Due from Subsidiary Company -Total Care Limited* 868.00 868.00
869.50 868.00
* Non interest bearing & having no fixed terms of repayment
INVENTORIES
Stock in Trade 826.86 1760.06
826.86 1760.06
The inventory of stock in trade has been taken, valued and certified by the management.
Break-up of Inventory
Stock in Trade
Tablets 218.57 255.89
Tubes 28.25 66.70
Others 580.04 1437.47
Total 826.86 1760.06
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured
Considered good 2,271.02 2,584.33
Considered doubiful 98.36 73.70
Less : Allowance for doubiful debts (98.36) (73.70)
2271.02 2584.33
Ageing of Trade Receivables (2022-23) <6 months Gmonths-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
Undisputed
- Considered good 2,040.83 181.76 40.85 7.58 - 2,271.02
- Having significant increase in credit risk & = - 2 5
- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Disputed
- Considered good - - - - - =
- Having significant increase in credit risk - 0.97 13.62 7.58 76.19 98.36
- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total Receivables 2,040.83 182.73 54.46 15.16 76.19 2,369.38
Ageing of Trade Receivables (2021-22) <6 months 6months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
Undisputed
- Considered good 2,388.12 170.79 2542 = - 2,584.33
- Having significant increase in credit risk < = - = =
- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Disputed
- Considered good - - - - - -
- Having significant increase in credit risk - B 6.02 20.84 46.84 73.70
- Credit Impaired & - - = _ _
Total Receivables 2,388.12 170.79 31.44 20.84 46.84 2,658.03
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks
Current Accounts 10.95 21.20
Cash in hand 0.05 1:13
11.00 22.33
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance with suppliers and others 64.75 826.78
Balance with Government Authorities - 106.31 187.67
Advances to employees 6.04 15.78
Recoverable from Insurance - 0.26
Prepaid Expenses 217.93 21.61
395.03 1,052.10




Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st MARCH , 2023

( Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
10 A. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
5,10,00,000 (Previous Year 5,10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5100.00 5100.00
5100.00 5100.00
Issued, Subscribed and paid up
4,06,79,500 (Previous Year 4,06,79,500) Equity Share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 4067.95 4067.95
4067.95 4067.95
B. Reconcilation of the numbers and amount of Equity shares -
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Amount Amount
Nos. (Rs./Lakhs) Nos. (Rs./Lakhs)
Quistanding at beginning of the year 40679500 4067.95 40679500 4067.95
Add : Shares issued during the year - - - -
Less : Shqres bought back during the year - - - -
Quistanding at the end of year 40679500 4067.95 40679500 4067.95

C. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of Shares -

a) i) The company has only one class of shares referred as equity shares, having a par value of Rs. 10/- each-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive the remaining assels of the company after distribution of preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

D. Shares in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by subsidiaries or associates of the

holding company or the ulti holding company in aggregate;
Name of Holding Company As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022

No. of Shares |% of Holding No. of Shares  |% of Holding
Morepen Laboratories Lid. 40679500 100 40679500 100

E. Shares in the company held by each sharcholder holding more than 5% shares -

Name of Shareholder As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
No. of Shares |% of Holding No. of Shares  |% of Holding
|Morepen Laboratories Lid. 40679500 100 40679500 100

F. During last 5 years immediately preeceding the balance sheet date, no Equity Share has been issued pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash.
Further the company has neither allotted any share by way of bonus shares, nor it had bought back any Equity Share during aforesaid period of 5 years.

G. No shares have been forfeited by the company during the year.

GEPEN
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Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st MARCH , 2023

( Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
11 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security received from business associates & others 120.00 148.26
120.00 148.26
12 PROVISIONS
Long-Term Short-Term
As at 31-3-23 As at 31-3-22 As at 31-3-23 I As at 31-3-22
Gratuity 55.60 96.92 1.99 3.31
Leave Encashment 32.07 63.50 3.74 7.43
Provision for Unpaid Expenses - - 126.96 198.50
Provision for Income Tax - - - 53.49
87.67 160.42 132.69 262.73
13 TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro small and medium enterprises 20.11 0.02
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro small and medium enterprises 2447.59 4067.36
2467.70 4067.38
No interest during the year has been paid or payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.
Ageing of Trade Payables (2022-23) <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
(i) MSME 2011 . - - 20.11
(ii) Others 2,433.33 3.31 3.11 1.80 2,441.55
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - ~
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - 6.04 - 6.04
Total Payable 2,453.44 3.31 9.15 1.80 2,467.70
|Ageing of Trade Payables (2021-22) <l year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
(i) MSME 0.02 = = = 0.02
(ii) Others 3,972.04 56.31 293 2353 4054.81
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME = = - - #
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - 12.55 - - 12.55
Total Payable 3,972.06 68.86 2.93 23.53 4,067.38
14 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accrued salaries and benefits 163.45 242.56
Other payables 24.75 56.26
188.20 298.82
s OTHER CURRENT LIABILTIES
Direct Taxes 13.95 21.45
Advance from Customers 146.17 220.85
Indirect Taxes 18.34 0.53
178.46 242.83

16 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT

PROVIDED FOR)

a) Contingent Liabilties

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls (routine petty matters - Amount not acertained)

(Against collateral security of Trade Mark 'Burnol’ given to Poysha Power Generation (P) Ltd. against Inter Corporate Deposit
taken by Morepen Laboratories Limited, the holding company . No amount is shown as contingent liability as the brand has been

Sfully depreciated - also refer note 2(2))

b) Commitments

ugram

(Haryana)




Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st MARCH , 2023

4

18

19

20

21

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
SALE OF PRODUCTS

Domestic Sales

Less : Discounts

Exports

Other Operating Revenues

Brand Usage Income

Misc Income

Delivery Charges

TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Break-up of revenue from sale of products
Traded Goods

Tablets

Tubes

Others

Total

OTHER INCOME

Unclaimed balances no more payable
Rental Income

Assignment Of Brand Franchise
Prior Period Income

Profit On Sale of Land

Total

PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
Traded Goods

Freight Inward

Packing Material

Custom Duty

Others

Purchase of Traded Goods
Classification

Traded Goods

Tablets

Tubes

Others

Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages

Contribution to provident fund and ESIC
Gratuity & Leave Encashment Expenses
Staff Welfare

OTHER EXPENSES

Repair and Maintenance

Rent

Travelling and vehicle running expenses

Insurance Expenses

Freight Outward

Miscellaneous Expenses (net of recovery of Rs.20.38 Lakh [from parent company)
Legal & Professional Expenses

Marketing & Sales Promotion Expenses

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
10218.81 11738.61
(899.04) (1180.29)
29.60 5.67
9349.37 10563.99
163.53 209.46
0.65 -
16.45 -
9530.00 10773.45
2,543.33 2930.99
1,483.34 1874.07
6,221.74 6939.21
10,248.41 11744.27
31.01 5.86
153.50 -
1.00 -
5.41 -
- 1.06
190.92 6.92
5636.88 7395.28
118.56 260.31
51.86 65.13
101.29 299.71
13.19 20.16
5921.78 8040.59
1486.14 2389.75
571.40 71173
3579.34 4293.80
5636.88 7395.28
714.29 1242.23
52.44 89.56
23.19 45.86
3.79 1.50
793.71 1379.15
3.48 -
249.45 102.18
222.95 358.82
16.26 20.76
245.98 319.03
250.70 208.09
48.80 35.56
693.27 783.56
1730.89 1850.00




Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st MARCH , 2023

22 PAYMENT TQ AUDITORS (excluding GS. T)

( Rs. in Lakhs)
Year Ended 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
[Audit Fee 2.50 4.50
Tax Audit Fee 2.50 0.50
Certification 0.40 0.44
Total 5.40 5.44
23 PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS
Expenses include Rs.75.68 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 11.62 Lakhs) as expenses (net) relating to earlier Yyears.
24 DISCLOSURES ABOUT IMPORTS & EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Stock -in -trade 577.44 1,577.49
577.44 1,577.49
25 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Exports of Goods on F.O.B. basis 29.60 5.67
29.60 5.67
26 SEGMENT REPORTING
In accordance with Ind AS-108, "Operating S " the C 1y's busi activity falls within a single primary business segment
viz. “Trading in OTC, Health and diagonstics products’.
27 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Disclosure as required by accounting standard “Related Party Disclosures”

Accountants of India are given here under:

Related Parties

(Ind AS 24) issued by the Institute of Chartered

1. Holding Company
\Morepen Laboratories Limited

Domestic Company

2. Subsidiary Company
Total Care Limited

Domestic Company

3 Associates

[Morepen Bio Inc., USA (Formely Morepen Inc.)
(Morepen RX Limited

|Morepen Devices Limited

Foreign Company
Domestic Company
Domestic Company

4. Key Management Personnel

Mr. Varun Suri, Managing Director
Mr. Ajay Kumar Sharma, Director & CFO
Mr.Akshay Mehta, Company Secretary

3. Relatives of Key Management Personnels with which the
company has any transactions during the year

Sakshi Suri

6. Entities over which key management personnel/ or
Relatives of key management personnel are able to exercise
significant influence with which the company has any
transactions during the year

Blueheavan Marketing Pvt Ltd
Vignet Trading Pvt. Ltd.
Groom Town Private Limited
Happier Life Private Limited

Transactions with related parties -

Particulars Nature of transaction (Rs. in Lakhs)

1. Holding Company Sale of inventories 50.18
Purchase of inventories 606.21
Brand Usage Income 163.53
Reimbursement of Expenses 173.88
Balance as on 31.03.23 - Payable 1119.59
(Maximum balance Payable Rs.1996.00 Lakhs)

2. Subsidiary Companies Transactions During the Year Nil
Amount Receivable balance as on 31.03.2023 868.00
(Maximum balance outstanding Rs. 868.00 Lakhs)

3. Key Management Personnel Remuneration 12.99
Balance Payable as on 31.03.23 1.08
(Maximum balance outstanding Rs.1.55 Lakhs)

4. Relatives of Key Management Personnels with which the |Remuneration 4.08

company has any transactions during the year Fatanoe Bayablearons 108,23 Nil
(Maximum balance outstanding Rs.4.08 Lakhs)

3. Entities over which key management personnel/ or Receipt of share warrant sub. scription money

Relatives of key management personnel are able to exercise Blueheavan Marketing Pvi Lid 198.00

significant inﬂue.nce with which the company has any Vignet Trading Py, Lid, 427.00

transactions during the year
Sale of inventories to Groom Town Pvt. Lid 1418.89
Purchase of inventories from Groom Town Pvt. Lid. 245.73
Balance as on 31.03.23 — Receivable 577.36
(Maximum balance Receivable Rs.745.17 Lakhs)
Sale of inventories to Happier Life Pvt. Lid Nil
Purchase of inventories from Happier Life Pvt. Lid, 0.29
Balance as on 31.03.23 — Payable 8.60
(Maximum balance Payable Rs.22.95 Lakhs)




28 EARNING PER SHARE
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Profit/(Loss) after tax (Rs. in Lakhs) (641.87) 195
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 40679500 0629200
Basic Earning/(loss) per share in rupees (face value Rs.10/- per share) (1.58) 0.005
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing diluted EPS 30849378 30849375
Diluted EPS - (Face value of Rs.10/- per share) (1.26) 0.004
29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Disclosures as per Ac ing Standard, Ind AS -19 (Revised) 'Employee Benefits' is as under -

(4) Disclosures for Defined Contrib Plans - (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 46.86 78.56
Employer's Contribution to Employees State Insurance 3.32 10.93
Employer's Contribution 1o L.W.F. 0.27 0.06

(B) Disclosures for Defined Benefit Plans - Unfunded

y Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
Change in the present value of oblig 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Present Value of Obligation as at beginning of the year 100.22 91.46 70.94 62.95
Add: Interest Cost 5.34 6.93 3.54 5.60
Add: Current Service Cost 10.09 19.21 18.71 32.68
Less:- Benefit Paid (39.70) (17.71) (30.97) (27.75)
Less:- Disposals (21.63) - (21.19) -
Add: Acturial loss on obligations 3.25 0.33 (5.22) (2.54)
Present Value of Obligation as at year end 57.59 100.22 35.81 70.94

Il |Change in the fair value of plan Assets: 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Yyear - -
Add : Expected Return on Plan Assets - - - -
Add : Contributions - = 5 -
Less: Benefits Paid = = - =
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year end - - -

Ill'| Expense r d in the Stat of Profit and Loss 31.03.2023 |  31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Current Service Cost 10.09 19.21 18.71 32.68
Add: Interest Cost 5.34 6.93 3.54 5.60
Less: Expected Return on plan asstes - - - -
Less: Settlement Credit - - (9.28) (16.01)
Add: Net acturial loss recognised 3.25 0.33 (5.22) (2.54)
Total expenses recognized in of profit & loss 18.69 26.46 775 19.73

IV The following table sets out the ptions used in actuarial valuation of gratuity and leave encashment-

Assumptions 31.03.2023 |  31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Discount Rate 7.20% 7.30% 7.20% 7.40%
Expected return of Assets N/A N/A N/A N/A
Salary Escalation Rate 5% 5% 5% 5%
Employee Turnover rates 3% 3% 3% 3%

*Note: A sum of Rs. 9.28 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 16.01 Lakhs) benefits paid as salaries in respect of compensated absences
and Rs. 21.69 Lakhs(previous year Rs.11.74 Lakhs) regular benefit payments upon exit from service is included in the amount of
Rs. 30.97 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 27.75 Lakhs) of benefits paid.

30 IMPAIRMENT
It is the view of management that there are no impairment conditions that exist as on 31 March, 2023. Hence, no provision is
required in the accounts for the year under review.

31 TAXES

Deferred tax asset of Rs.132.72 Lakhs in respect of sum of Rs.527.35 Lakhs comprising of net taxable timing differences of
depreciation and Unused tax losses as provided by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-As 1 2) “Income Taxes" notified u/s 133 of The
Companies Act, 2013 is not recognised as a matter of prudence.

32 OTHERS SIGNIFICANT DISCLOSURES-
a) In the opinion of the Board, the assets, except stated otherwise, have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least
equal to the amount at which they are stated and the provision Jfor depreciation and for all known liabilities is adequate and considered
reasonable.

%) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
Jfunds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),including foreign entities (“Intermediaries ") with the
understanding,whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The C ipany has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the
under ding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ulti Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Balances of Non-current liabilities, Current liabilties, Long terms loans and advances, Trade receivables, Short term loans and
advances and banks are subject to confirmation. ’

d) Sales Tax assessments for earlier years are in progress. Demand, if any, shall be d for, on the compl, of asse.

) Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to-suit-the present year layout.

X s/




Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st MARCH , 2023

33.

(Rs. in Lakh)
Ratios As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 variation
Current Ratio 1.18 1.11 6%
- Numerator - Current Assets 3,503.91 5,418.82
- Denominator - Current Liabilities 2,967.05 4,871.76
Debt Equity Ratio NA NA
- Numerator - Debt - -
- Denominator
Equity 4,067.95 4,067.95
Reserves & Surplus (618.92) 22.95
Warrants 1,060.00 435.00
ocl 5.05 8.30
Total Equity 4,514.08 4,534.20
Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA
- Numerator - EBITDA 356.87 688.19
- Denominator
Interest on loans - -
Principal loans - -
Total Loan liability - -
Return on Equity Ratio -14.22% 0.04%| -33185%
- Numerator - PAT (641.87) 1.95
- Denominator
Equity 4,067.95 4,067.95
Reserves & Surplus (618.92) 22.95
Warrants 1,060.00 435.00
(o]al] 5.05 8.30
Total Equity 4,514.08 4,534.20
Inventory Turnover Ratio 5.29 5.89 -10%
- Numerator - Cost of Goods Sold 6,839.45 6,863.03
- Denominator - Average Inventory 1,293.46 1,165.82
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio( days) 91.15 83.46 9%
- Numerator - Revenue 9,720.92 10,780.37
- Denominator - Average Debtors 2,427.67 2,464.97
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (days) 174.38 151.88 15%
- Numerator - COGS 6,839.45 6,863.03
- Denominator - Average Creditors 3,267.54 2,855.84
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 2.15 2.38 -9%
- Numerator - Revenue 9,720.92 10,780.37
- Denominator
Equity 4,067.95 4,067.95
Reserves & Surplus (618.92) 22.95
Warrants 1,060.00 435.00
ocCl 5.05 8.30
Total Equity 4,514.08 4,534.20
Net Profit Ratio -6.60% 0.02%| -36628%
- Numerator - PAT (641.87) 1.95
- Denominator - Revenue 9,720.92 10,780.37
NP Ratio
Return on Capital employed -13.59% 0.04%| -33883%
- Numerator - (PAT+Interest) (641.87) 1.95
- Denominator
Shareholder Wealth 4,514.08 4,534.20
Non Current Liabilities 207.67 308.68
/ 4,721.74 4,842.88
Return on Investment -8.35% 0.02%| -41717%
- Numerator - PAT (641.87) 1.95
- Denominator - Total Assets \ 7,688.80 9,714.64
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Dr. Morepen Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Dr. Morepen
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31,2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated loss,consolidated total comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in Annual Report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. &
N\
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in
equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act,
read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

The respective board of directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the directors of the Holding Company
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective board of directors of the
entities included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue
as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company
or to cease the operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements,whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks,and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
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resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable,
that:
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a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of the Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our Opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issues thereunder.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
company and its Indian subsidiaries as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the respective companies, none of the directors of the Group companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31% March 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report as
per Annexure A.

g) There is no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated
financial statements.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The company has not paid any remuneration to any director during the year under audit.

i)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group;

ii) The companies in the Group did not have any long term contracts including
derivative contracts;

iii) During the year, the Group was not liable to transfer any amount to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.
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iv) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement. (Refer Note No. 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements)

v) No Company in the group has declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For S.P.Babuta & Associates
ered Accountants
s Regn. No: 007657N

(Par’m r)
Date :16'" May, 2023 Membership No. : 086348
Place :Gurugram,Haryana UDIN: 23086348 56 Y BEE8 862
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Dr.
Morepen Limited for the year ended 315 March 2023)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding
Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of Dr. Morepen Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”), as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of directors of the holding company and its subsidiaries which are
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by these
entities, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on internal financial controls system over ﬁn‘ancial reporting of the

1
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Holding company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,
the Holding company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, have, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note.

For S.P.Babuta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date : 16" May, 2023 Membership No. : 086348 gg €2
Place :Gurugram,Haryana UDIN : 2 208634% 126 Y BEF



Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

( Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Notes 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets :
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 91.36 121.03
Goodwill 2 467.99 467.99
Intangible Assets 2 1,921.82 2000.36
2,481.17 2589.38
Financial Assets :
Other Financial Assets 3 131.48 135.70
Other Non-Current Assets 4 1.50 -
2,614.15 2725.08
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 5 826.86 1760.06
Financial Assets :
Trade Receivables 6 2,274.56 2585.30
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 12.75 24.73
Other Current Assets 8 397.23 1055.00
3,511.40 5425.09
TOTAL 6,125.55 8150.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 9 4,067.95 4067.95
Other Equity (1,131.53) (1111.87)
2,936.42 2956.08
MINORITY INTEREST 10 (46.03) (46.05)
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilties :
Other Financial Liabilities 11 120.00 148.26
Provisions 12 87.67 160.42
207.67 308.68
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilties :
Trade payables 13 2,470.29 4069.07
Other Financial liabilities 14 188.19 298.82
Other Current Liabilties 15 236.32 300.84
Provisions 12 132.69 262.73
3,027.49 4931.46
TOTAL 6,125.55 8150.17
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-32

As per our separate report of even date & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

(Ajay Kumar Sharma)
~. Managing Director Director & CFO
| DIN No. : 01456254 DIN No. : 00041932

Coufipany Secretary
Membership No. : A41168

Place : Gurugram
Date : 16th May, 2023



Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

REVENUE

Revenue from Operations (Net)
Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade
Employee Benefits Expenses

Finance Cost

Depreciation & Amortization

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Tax expense:

(1) Earlier Years

(2) Current Year

Total Tax Expense
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year

Share of minority interest in Profit/(loss)
Profit/(Loss) for the year available for majority shareholders

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss :
Acturial Gain/(Loss) on Employee Benefils

(1) Tax on Above

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Earning/(Loss) per share of par value of Rs.1 0/-
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended

Notes 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
17 9533.00 10773.45
18 190.96 7.19
9723.96 10780.64

19 5921.78 8040.58
917.67 (1,177.56)

20 793.72 1379.16
2 992.47 644.77
21 1733.44 1852.97
10359.08 10739.92

(635.12) 40.72
6.27 (12.10)

- 53.57

6.27 41.47

(641.39) (0.75)
0.02 (0.14)
(641.41) (0.61)
(3.25) (0.33)
- (0.08)

(3.25) (0.25)

(644.66) (0.86)

28
(1.58) (0.001)
(1.26) (0.001)
1
2-32

As per our separate report of even date

For S,P.BABUTA & ASSOCIATES
Chartere Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 007657N

Place : Gurugram
Date : 16th May, 2023

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

(Varun Suri)
Managing Director
DIN No. : 01456254

-

(Ajay Kumar Sh
Director & CFO

P
(Akspdy Mehta)

Cbmpany Secretary
Membership No. : A41168

o

DIN No. : 00041932




Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit before Tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments

Provision for Employee benefit (OCI)

Operating Profit before changes in Current Assets and Liabilities
Changes in current assets and current liabilities -

Trade Receivables

Other current assels

Inventories

Current liabilities

Income Tax (including Tax on OCI)

NET CASH GENERATED/(USED) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments

Purchase/Addition of Intangibles, Goodwill (net)

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments

Loans & Other Non-current assels

NET CASH GENERATED/ (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Finance Cost

Money Received against Share Warrant

Change in Other Long Term liabilities & provisons(Net)

NET CASH GENERATED/(USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at Begining of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at End of the Year

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year Ended
Note No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(635.12) 40.72
2 992.47 644.77
18 - (1.06)
(3.25) (0.33)
354.10 684.10
6 310.74 (225.97)
8 657.77 (951.09)
5 933.20 (1188.49)
12,13,14,15 (1903.97) 2605.48
(6.27) (41.39)
345.57 882.64
2 (7.44) (28.81)
2 (876.82) (2149.48)
- 16.00
3.4 2.72 1,248.49
(881.54) (913.80)
0 - =
625.00 -
11,12 (101.01) (7.71)
523.99 (7.71)
(11.98) (38.87)
24.73 63.60
12.75 24.73
1
2-32

As per our separate report of even date

For S.P.BABUTA & ASSOCIATES
Chart&r;d Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 007657N

(CA S.P-Rabuta)
Partner 5
Membership No. 0863487 |

i '\

-

\

Place : Gurugram
Date : 16th May, 2023

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

(Varun Suri)
Managing Director
DIN No. : 01456254

(Ajay Kumar Sharma)
Director & CFO
.- 00041932

o
X

(Akshay Mehta)

Company Secretary
Membership No. : A41168
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Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

4. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as at Ist April 2022 Change in equity share capital during

Balance as at March 31, 2023

the year
4067.95 - 4067.95
As at 31st March, 2022
Balance as at 1st April 2021 Change in equity share capital during Balance as at March 31, 2022
the year
4067.95 - 4067.95
B. OTHER EQUITY AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Otal}e;x,:z:ns Money Received

Secririties . . Gomprehentive against share Total Other Equity

Pt Retained Earnings Income warrant
Balance as at Ist April 2022 3287.25 (4842.43) 8.31 435.00 (1111.87)
Profit for the year - (641.41) - - (641.41)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - = (3.25) - 3.25)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - (641.41) (3.25) - (644.66)
Money Received against Share warrant 625.00 625.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3287.25 (5483.84) 5.06 1060.00 (1131.53)
OTHER EQUITY AS AT 31st MARCH, 2022

RESERVES & SURPLUS Other it
rer items Money Received
38 of other : .
Securities g . . against share Total Other Equity
3 Retained Earnings comprehensive
Premium ; warrant
income

Balance as at 1st April 2021 3287.25 (4841.82) 8.56 435.00 (1111.01)
Profit for the year - (0.61) - - (0.61)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - (0.25) - (0.25)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - (0.61) (0.25) - (0.85)
Money Received against Share warrant - _
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3287.25 (4842.43) 8.31 435.00 (1111.87)

In financial year 2020-21, the company had issued 1,01,69,8 75 Fully Convertible Warrants at an issue price of Rs. 30/- (Rupees Thirty Only) per Warrant to Blueheaven Marketing
Private Limited and Vignet Trading Private Limited (“Warrant Holders ”). The said Warrant Holders were entitled to exercise their option to convert the Warrants into equivalent
number of Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each within a period of 12 months from the date of allotment of. said Warrants i.e., 24th March 2021. In the
meantime, a request has been received from Warrant Holders to extend the Warrant Exercise period and accordingly, the company has extended the Warrant exercise period up-to
9th March 2023 by passing of ‘Special Resolution’ on 10th March 2022. Therefore, the Warrant Holders were required to exercise their option to convert Warrants into Equity
Shares within the prescribed extended period upon payment of balance amount of Warrants issue price.

Further, during the financial year, the company has received partial balance amount from the Warrant Holders (Blueheaven Marketing Private Limited Rs.198.00 Lakhs and Vignet
Trading Private Limited Rs.427.00 Lakhs to subscribe for Equity Shares along with a request to extend Warrant Exercise Period for a further period of 1 year. Based on the request
received, the company has further extended the Warrant exercise period up-to 6th March 2024 by passing of ‘Special Resolution’ on 7th March 2023. Accordingly, pursuant to
exercise of option, i.e. upon payment of the balance amount of Warrants issue price (i.e. Rs.1990.96 Lakhs) on or before 6th March 2024, the said Warrants will be converted into

Fauitv Shares of the comnanv.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1
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As per our separate report of even date

For S.P.BABUTA & ASSOCIATES
Charlered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 007657N
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‘ompany Secretary
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Place
Date
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: 16th May, 2023

Managing Director
DIN No. : 01456254

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Morepen Limited

Director & CFFO

(Ajay Kumar Sharma)

DIN No. : 00041932




1.1

Dr. Morepen Limited

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Overview

Dr. Morepen Limited (“the Company”’) is a Public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in India . The addresses of its registered office and principal place of
business are 409, Antriksh Bhawan, 22, KG Marg, New Delhi-110001and 2" Floor,
Tower C, DLF Cyber Park, Udyog Vihar, Sector-20,Gurugram, Haryana-122016 .
The Company is in the business of trading of OTC,Health and diagnostic products.

Basis for preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”’) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(SEBI), as applicable.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements consist of financial statements of Dr. Morepen
Ltd. (parent company) and its subsidiary namely Total Care Ltd., (Domestic

Company)

The names of subsidiary companies included in consolidation and parent company’s
holding therein are as under-

Subsidiary Company Country of Percentage of Holding %
Incorporation
Total Care Ltd. India 95

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on May 16 ,2023.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional

currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates.

Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless

otherwise indicated.

Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products/activities of the company and normal time betwee
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the compg
has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification df
assets and liabilities as current and non-current.




1.2 Use of Estimates and Judgements

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management of the company to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These
estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include provisions for
doubtful debts, employee benefits, provisions for income taxes, useful life of
depreciable assets and provisions for impairments & others.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

1.3. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant
and equipment as recognized in the financial statements as at the date of transition (o
Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as the deemed cost as at the
transition date pursuant to the exemption under Ind AS 101.

a) Free hold land is carried at cost. All other items of Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of PPE comprises
its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and
any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and
location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected
significant costs of decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

b) Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other
non-current assets.

¢) Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended
use are carried at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and
attributable interest.

d) The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Assets to be disposed off are reporteg
at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. PEN

1.4 Intangible Assets and Amortisation
Intangible Assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carrién

cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. The

Company determines the amortisation period as the period over which the future




economic benefits will flow to the Company after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis

1.5 Depreciation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its
useful life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed
in Schedule II to the Act or as per technical assessment.

a) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates
prescribed by the schedule 1I of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the manner as
prescribed by it except assets costing less than Rs. 5000/~ on which depreciation
is charged in full during the year.

b) Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful
life on straight line basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the
company for its use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is
based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, etc. The
amortization method and useful lives are reviewed periodically at end of each
financial year.

1.6. Valuation of inventories
Stocks of raw materials and other ingredients have been valued on First in First Out
(FIFO) basis, at cost or net realizable value whichever is less, finished goods and
stock-in-trade have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Goods in
transit are carried at cost.

1.7. Foreign Currency Transactions / Translations

i)  Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate
at the date of the transaction.

ii) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

iii) Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

iv) Foreign exchange differences recorded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are
presented in the statement of profit and loss, as a part of finance cost. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and,
loss on net basis. §O

v) In case of long term monetary items outstanding as at the end of year, exchan
differences arising on settlement / restatement thereof are capitalised as part o
the depreciable fixed assets to which the monetary item relates and depreciated
over the remaining useful life of such assets. If such monetary items do not relate
to acquisition of depreciable fixed assets, the exchange difference is amortised



over the maturity period / up to the date of settlement of such monetary items,
whichever is earlier, and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.8 Dividends
Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the
shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the company’s Board of Directors.

1.9 Leases

Leases under which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. When acquired, such assets are capitalized
at fair value or present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of lease,
whichever is lower. Lease under which the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
are not transferred to lessee, is classified as operating lease. Lease payments under
operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in net profit in
the statement of profit and loss over the lease term.

2.0 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

i) Initial Recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, all the financial assets and liabilities are recognized at its
fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability except financial asset
or financial liability measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
Transaction costs of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through
the Profit and Loss are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
are measured at transaction price.

ii) Subsequent measurement

.o a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

O\ A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within
a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive_income

(FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets &
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates gf'
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the prindPlGirugram\ =
amount outstanding. ;\ (Haryanay | =}




¢) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is
measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

d) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The Company has adopted to measure investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 and carrying
amount as per previous GAAP at the date of transition has been considered as
deemed cost in accordance with Ind AS 101.

e) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or
‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held
for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Gains or Losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

iii) Derecognition of financial instruments

v)

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies
for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is determined using the valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Based on the three level fair value hierarchy, the methods used to determine the
fair value of financial assets and liabilities include quoted market price, discounted
cash flow analysis and valuation certified by the external valuer.

In case of financial instruments where the carrying amount approximates fair value
due to the short maturity of those instruments, carrying amount is considered g
fair value.

Impairment of Assets

Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company recognizes loss allowances using
expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued

through profit or loss.
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Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment
gain or loss in statement of profit or loss.

ii) Non-Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case any impairment
loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a
revaluation reserve is available for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in
use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present
value based on an appropriate discount factor.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other
than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased. such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss. In case of revalued assets, such reversal is not recognised.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount can be reliably measured.

a) Revenue is recognised at the value of consideration received or receivable. The
transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the company
as part of the contract. The amount disclosed as revenue is net of returns, trade
discounts, Goods and Services Tax (GST).

Provisions for rebates, discount and return are estimated and provided for in the
year of sales and recorded as reduction of revenue.

b) Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is
established.

| Interest
/ “Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the

" Jeconomic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured ZpE,

reliably. (o)
‘[5 Gu
Income from interest is recognized using the effective inferest rate (EIR). EIR is ‘tl (Haryanj /;7-‘ -'
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over NQ O,
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the~_ % _
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gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case
it is also recognized in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends
cither to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at
the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax
Jaws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.
A deferred income tax asset is recognized 10 the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and tax losses can be utilized.

Pursuant to Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, the company has opted
to pay Income Tax as provided under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources,
that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the
discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in
settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in
the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is
recognised.

Earning per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating the diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as
at beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Employee Retirement benefits

i)  Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post — employment benefits

Defined contribution plans —
Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme.
The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to th
provident fund. Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as

expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contribuflg:




Defined benefit plans —

Gratuity

The company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering eligible employees. The Gratuity payment plan provides for a lump sum
payment to the vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation,
performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income which are not reclassified
to profit or loss in the subsequent periods.

iii) Long — term employee benefits
Leave Encashment
The liability of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using
projected unit credit method.

2.9 Segment Reporting
The company operates in one reportable business segment i.e. * OTC,Health &
diagnostic products”.

3.0 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term deposits with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.
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Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F OR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

( Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
3 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits 131.48 135.70
\ 131.48 135.70
4 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits with NSDL 1.50 -
1.50 -
5 INVENTORIES
Stock in Trade 826.86 1,760.06
826.86 1760.06
The inventory of stock in trade has been taken, valued and certified by the management.
Break-up of Inventory
Stock in Trade
Tablets 218.57 255.89
Tubes 28.25 66.70
Others 580.04 1437.47
Total 826.86 1760.06
6 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured
Considered good 2274.56 2,585.30
Considered doubtful 102.26 77.60
Less :Allowance for doubtful debis (102.26) (77.60)
2274.56 2585.30
Ageing of Trade Receivables (2022-23) <6 th hs-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
Undisputed
- Considered good 2,044.37 181.76 40.85 7.58 - 2,274.56
_ Having significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
- Considered good - - - - - -
- Having significant increase in credit risk - 0.97 13.62 7.58 80.09 102.26
- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total Receivables 2,044.37 182.73 54.47 15.16 80.09 2,376.82
Ageing of Trade Receivables (2021-22) <6 ' hs-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
Undisputed
- Considered good 2,388.12 171.75 25.43 - - 2,585.30
_ Having significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
- Considered good - - - - - -
_ Having significant increase in credit risk - - 6.02 20.84 50.74 77.60
- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total Receivables 2,388.12 171.75 31.45 20.84 50.74 2,662.90
7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks
Current Accounts 12.69 23.36
Cash on hand 0.06 1.37
12.75 24.73
8 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance with suppliers and others 64.75 826.78
Balance with Government Authorities 108.51 190.56
Advances to employees 6.04 15.78
Recoverable from Insurance - 0.26
217.93 21.62

Prepaid Expenses
397.23 1,055.00




Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023
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( Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
5,10,00,000 (Previous Year 5,10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,100.00 5100.00
5100.00 5100.00
Issued, Subscribed and paid up
4,06,79,500 (Previous Year 4,06,79,500) Equity Share of Rs.10/- each Sfully paid up 4,067.95 4067.95
4067.95 4067.95
. Reconcilation of the numbers and amount of Equity
shares -
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Amount Amount
Nos. (Rs./Lakhs) Nos. (Rs./Lakhs)
Outstanding at beginning of the year 40679500 4067.95 40679500 4067.95
Add : Shares issued during the year - - - -
Less : Shares bought back during the year - - 3 s
Outstanding at the end of year 40679500 4067.95 40679500 4067.95
" Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of Shares -
a) i) The company has only one class of shares referred as equily shares, having a par value of Rs. 10/- each-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share.
ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company afier
distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
. Shares in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by subsidiaries
or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate;
Name of Holding Company As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
No. of Shares |% of Holding No. of Shares |% of Holding
Morepen Laboratories Ltd. 40679500 100 40679500 100
. Shares in the pany held by each shareholder holding more than 5 % shares -
Name of Shareholder As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
No. of Shares |% of Holding No. of Shares |% of Holding
Morepen Laboratories Ltd. 40679500 100 40679500 100
During last 5 years immediately preeceding the balance sheet date, no Equity Share has been issued pursuant o any contract without payment being
received in cash. Further the company has neither allotted any share by way of bonus shares, nor it had bought back any Equity Share during aforesaid
period of 5 years.
. No shares have been forfeited by the company during the year.
MINORITY INTEREST
Share Capital 46.67 46.67
Share in Profit/(Loss) (92.70) (92.72)
(46.03) (46.05)
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NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023
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12

13

14

15

16

( Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security received from business associates & others 120.00 148.26
120.00 148.26
PROVISIONS
Long-Term Short -Term
As at 31-3-23 |  Asat 31-3-22 Asat31-3-23|  Asat 31-3-22
Gratuity 55.60 96.92 1.99 3.31
Leave Encashment 32.07 63.50 3.74 7.43
Provision for Unpaid Expenses v 5 126.96 198.50
Provision for Income Tax - - - 53.49
87.67 160.42 132.69 262.73
TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro small and medium enlerprises 20.56 0.02
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro small and medium enterprises 2,449.73 4,069.05
2470.29 4069.07
No interest during the year has been paid or payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.
Ageing of Trade Payables (2022-23) <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
(i) MSME 20.56 - - - 20.56
(ii) Others 2,434.76 4.02 3.11 1.80 2443.69
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - 6.04 - 6.04
Total Payable 2455.32 4.02 9.15 1.80 2470.29
Ageing of Trade Payables (2021-22) <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years or more Total
i) MSME 0.02 - - - 0.02
(ii) Others 3,973.74 56.30 2.93 23.53 4056.50
iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - = - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - 12.55 - - 12.55
Total Payable 3973.76 68.85 2.93 23.53 4069.07
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accrued salaries and benefits 163.44 242.56
Other payables 24.75 56.26
188.19 298.82
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Direct Taxes 13.99 21.60
Advance from Customers 146.17 220.85
Indirect Taxes 18.34 0.53
Others 357.82 57.86
236.32 300.84

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE

EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
a) Contingent Liabilties

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls (routine petty matters - Amount not

acertained)

(Against collateral security of Trade Mark 'Burnol’ given to Poysha Power Generation (P) Ltd. against Inter Corporate Deposit taken
by Morepen Laboratories Limited, the holding company . No amount is shown as contingent liability as the brand has been fully

depreciated - also refer note 2(2))
b) Commitments
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( Rs. in Lakhs)

Asat As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
SALE OF PRODUCTS
Domestic Sales 10218.81 11738.61
Less : Discounts (899.04) (1,180.29)
Exports 29.60 5.67
9349.37 10563.99
Other Operating Revenues
Brand Usage Income 163.53 209.46
Misc Income 0.65 -
Delivery Charges 16.45 -
Commission Income 3.00 -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 9533.00 10773.45
Break-up of revenue from sale of products
Traded Goods
Tablets 2543.33 2930.99
Tubes 1483.34 1874.07
Others 6221.74 6939.21
Total 10248.41 11744.28
OTHER INCOME
Others 0.04 0.27
Unclaimed balances no more payable 31.01 5.86
Rental Income 153.50 -
Assignment Of Brand Franchise 1.00 -
Prior Period Income 5.41 -
Profit On Sale of Land - 1.06
Total 190.96 7.19
PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
Traded Goods 5636.88 7395.28
Freight Inward 118.56 260.30
Packing Material 51.86 65.13
Custom Duty 101.29 299.71
Others 13.19 20.16
5921.78 8040.58
Purchase of Traded Goods
Classification
Traded Goods
Tablets 1486.14 2389.75
Tubes 571.40 71173
Others 3579.34 4293.80
Total 5636.88 7395.28
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 714.29 1242.23
Contribution to provident fund and ESIC 5245 89.57
Gratuity & Leave Encashment Expenses 23.19 43.86
Staff Welfare 3.79 1.50
793.72 1379.16
OTHER EXPENSES
Repair and Maintenance 3.48 -
Rent 250.88 103.35
Travelling and vehicle running expenses 222.95 358.82
Insurance Expenses 16.26 20.76
Freight Outward 245.98 319.03
Miscellaneous Expenses(net of recovery of Rs.20.38 Lakh from parent company) 251.56 209.52
Legal & Professional Expenses 49.06 55.92
Marketing & Sales Promotion Expenses 693.27 785.57
1733.44 1852.97
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26

27

PAYMENT TO AUDITORS

( Rs. in Lakhs)
Year Ended 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Audit Fee 3.00 35.60
Tax Audit Fee 2.50 0.50
Certification 0.40 0.44
Total 5.90 6.54
PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS

Expenses include Rs.75.68 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 11.62 Lakhs) as expenses (net) relating to earlier years.

DISCLOSURES ABOUT IMPORTS & EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS
Stock -in -trade 577.44 1,577.49
577.44 1,577.49

EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Exports of Goods on F.O.B. basis 29.60 5.67
29.60 5.67
SEGMENT REPORTING

In accordance with Ind AS-108, "Operating Segment " the Company's business activity Jalls within a single primary business segment
viz. “Trading in OTC ,Health & digonastics Producis '.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Disclosure as required by accounting standard “Related Party Disclosures” (Ind AS 24) issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India are given here under:

Related Parties

1. Holding Company

Morepen Laboratories Limited Domestic Company

2. Subsidiary Company

Total Care Limited Domestic Company

3 Associates

Morepen Bio Inc., USA (Formely Morepen Inc.) Foreign Company

Morepen RX Limited Domestic Company

Morepen Devices Limited Domestic Company

4. Key Management Personnel Mr. Varun Suri, Managing Director

Mr. Ajay Kumar Sharma, Director & CFO
Mr.Akshay Mehta, Company Secretary

5. Relatives of Key Management Personnels with which the |Sakshi Suri
company has any transactions during the year

6. Entities over which key management personnel/ or Blueheavan Marketing Pvt Ltd
Relatives of key management personnel are able to exercise Vignet Trading Pvt. Ltd.
significant influence with which the company has any Groom Town Private Limited
transactions during the year Happier Life Private Limited
Transactions with related parties -
Particulars Nature of transaction (Rs. in Lakhs)
1. Holding Company Sale of inventories 50.18
Purchase of inventories 606.21
Brand Usage Income 163.53
Reimbursement of Expenses 173.88
Balance as on 31.03.23 — Payable 1119.59
(Maximum balance Payable Rs.1996.00 Lakhs)
2. Key Management Personnel Remuneration 12.99
Balance Payable as on 31.03.23 1.08
(Maximum balance outstanding Rs.1.55 Lakhs)
3. Relatives of Key Management Personnels with which the |Remuneration 4.08
company has any transactions during the year Balance Payable as on 31.03.23 Nil
(Maximum balance outstanding Rs.4.08 Lakhs)
4. Entities over which key management personnel/ or Receipt of share warrant subscription money
Relatives of key management personnel are able to exercise | preheavan Marketing Pvt Ltd 198.00
significant influence with which the company has any Vignet Trading Pvi. Lid. 427.00
transactions during the year
Sale of inventories to Groom Town Pvt. Lid 1418.89
Purchase of inventories from Groom Town Pv. Lid. 245.73
Balance as on 31.03.23 — Receivable 577.36
A8 g o |(Maximum balance Receivable Rs.745.17 Lakhs)
T B e |Sale of inventories to Happier Life Pvi. Lid Nil
' \ \|Purchase of inventories from Happier Life Pvt. Ltd. 0.29
A\ 5 1V |Balance as on 31.03.23 — Payable 8.60
\X\/ 0. |(Maximum balance Payable Rs.22.95 Lakhs)
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EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars Year Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Profit/(Loss) after tax (Rs. in Lakhs) (641.41) (0.61)

40679500 40679500

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

Basic Earning/(loss) per share in rupees (face value Rs.10/- per share) (.55 (000

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing diluted EPS 30849375 e

(1.26) (0.001)

Diluted EPS - (Face value of Rs.10/- per share)

IMPAIRMENT
1t is the view of management that there are no impairment conditions that exist as on 31" March, 2023. Hence, no provision is
required in the accounts for the year under review.

TAXES

Deferred tax asset of Rs.132.72 Lakhs in respect of sum of Rs.527.35 Lakhs comprising of net taxable timing differences of
depreciation and Unused tax losses as provided by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-As 12) “Income Taxes" notified u/s 133 of The
Companies Act, 2013 is not recognised as a matter of prudence.

OTHERS SIGNIFICANT DISCLOSURES-

In the opinion of the Board, the assets, except stated otherwise, have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least
equal to the amount at which they are stated and the provision for depreciation and for all known liabilities is adequate and
considered reasonable.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the
understanding,whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaty shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf
of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Balances of Non-current liabilities, Current liabilties, Long terms loans and advances, Trade receivables, Short term loans and
advances and banks are subject to confirmation.

Sales Tax assessments for earlier years are in progress. Demand, if any, shall be accounted for, on the completion of assessments.

Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to suit the present year layout.




Dr. MOREPEN LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2023 - S

(Rs. In Lakh)
Ratios ’ As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 VARIATION
Current Ratio 1.16 1.10 5%
- Numerator - Current Assets 3,511.40 5,425.09
- Denominator - Current Liabilities 3,027.49 4,931.46
Current Ratio
Debt Equity Ratio NA NA
- Numerator - Debt - -
- Denominator
Equity 4,067.95 4,067.95
Reserves & Surplus (2,196.59) (1,555.18)
_ Warrants 1,060.00 435.00
ocl 5.06 8.31
Total Equity 2,936.42 2,956.08
Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA
- Numerator - EBITDA 357.35 685.49
- Denominator
Interest on loans - -
Principal loans - -
Total Loan liability - -
Return on Equity Ratio -21.84% -0.02% 106425%
- Numerator - PAT (641.41) (0.61)
- Denominator
Equity 4,067.95 4,067.95
Reserves & Surplus (2,196.59) (1,555.18)
Warrants 1,060.00 435.00
ocl 5.06 8.31
Total Equity 2,936.42 2,956.08
Inventory Turnover Ratio 5.29 5.89 -10%
- Numerator - Cost of Goods Sold 6,839.45 6,863.02
- Denominator - Average Inventory 1,293.46 1,165.82
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio( days) 91.21 83.71 9%
- Numerator - Revenue 9,723.96 10,780.64
- Denominator - Average Debtors 2,429.93 2,472.31
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (days) 174.49 152.12 15%
- Numerator - COGS 6,839.45 6,863.02
- Denominator - Average Creditors 3,269.68 2,860.31
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 3.31 3.65 -9%
- Numerator - Revenue 9,723.96 10,780.64
- Denominator
Equity 4,067.95 4,067.95
Reserves & Surplus (2,196.59) (1,555.18)
Warrants 1,060.00 435.00
ocl 5.06 8.31
Total Equity 2,936.42 2,956.08
Net Profit Ratio -6.60% -0.01% 117215%
- Numerator - PAT (641.41) (0.61)
- Denominator - Revenue 9,723.96 10,780.64
Return on Capital employed =3 . -20.40% -0.02% 109778%
- Numerator - (PAT+Interest) . 1(641.41) (0.61)
- Denominator ™ \ 5 q
Shareholder Wealth \) {4/ 2,936.42 2,956.08 S
Non Current Liabilities \ P 1207.67 308.68 o
\/ 3,144.09 3,264.76 [
Return on Investment -10.47% -0.01% 140691%
- Numerator - PAT (641.41) (0.61)
- Denominator - Total Assets 6,125.55 8,150.17




